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RESPONSES REQUESTED FROM THE SERVICES BY MAY 6, 2015 

 
Explanatory Information About Retaliation in the Services 
 

67. What organization is responsible for training leaders and service members about 
retaliation against victims of sexual assault?  Please describe that training and explain 
whether this is separate or in conjunction with mandatory EO training that addresses a 
hostile work environment? 

 
68. How does the Service advertise or publicize the DoDIG Whistleblower hotline to Service 

members?  Is there a separate hotline for members to report retaliation to the Service IG?  
 

69. What are the various channels within the Service that a victim of sexual assault or 
witness to retaliation can use to report social or professional retaliation? 
 

70. What organization is responsible for training those who assist service members with 
filing retaliation complaints?  How do victims learn about the availability of this 
assistance? 
 

71. What role do the following personnel have regarding retaliation complaints from a sexual 
assault victim:  SVC, SARC, VA, VWL, MCIO, TC, EOA, IG, Case Management Group 
(CMG), SARB?   

 
72. Who is primarily responsible for advising a victim of his/her options to file a complainant 

of professional or social retaliation?   
 

73. Is there standardization of the advice within different organizations that is given to 
victims of sexual assault who wish to make a complaint of professional or social 
retaliation?  If so, what advice is given? 

 
74. What is the process for victims to submit a formal report of professional reprisal (i.e., 

personnel action) or social retaliation (i.e.m ostracism, maltreatment, etc.)? 
 

75. When/how is a sexual assault victim’s retaliation complaint referred to: 
a. A Commander’s Inquiry or Investigation (informal or formal such as Army 

Regulation 15-6 investigation and JAGMAN investigations in the Navy and 
Marine Corps); 

b. MCIO for investigation; 
c. The Service IG for investigation; 
d. DOD IG for investigation; 
e. Any other investigative body (e.g., Art. 138 complaints)? 

 
76. What are the criteria for substantiating a retaliation case investigated by the command, 

the SARB, the Service IG, and MCIO?  If the standard is different, please explain.  
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77. What procedures are criminal investigators required to follow when a victim states that 
he/she has experienced social or professional retaliation after making a report of sexual 
assault?  Describe and provide any policies or regulations that address the role MCIOs 
have in investigating complaints of retaliation after a witness or victim reports a crime.  
Please include any special measures taken for victims who report a sexual assault. 

 
78. How does a victim learn of the results of a retaliation investigation?  Does victim 

notification vary for different types of retaliation claims?  How is a victim informed of 
the action that will be taken against the retaliator in a substantiated case? 

 
79. Who informs the Service member of their options to challenge the investigation findings?  

To whom can a Service member make a complaint about the handling of their case or 
appeal the findings of the: 

a. Command investigation? 
b. MCIO investigation? 
c. Service  IG investigation?   
d. DOD investigation?  
e. Art. 138 investigation? 

 
80. Board of Correction of Military Records (BCMRs) – 

  
a. How have BCMRs typically handled applications that specifically contain 

requests for relief from retaliation for making a protected communication?  
b. Are there any additional considerations given if an applicant states or provides 

evidence that he/she has been a victim of sexual assault in the military?  
c. What considerations are given when applicants note they filed a sexual assault 

report, admittedly engaged in collateral or subsequent misconduct, and the 
command’s adverse action was unfair or an injustice (i.e., a request to change an 
involuntary administrative discharge to a medical discharge)?  If those cases are 
not treated as retaliatory claims, please explain how BCMRs distinguish those 
record corrections requests which may imply a causal connection to the sexual 
assault from those that specifically state the action was in reprisal to filing a 
report. 

d. What procedures have been developed with DOD IG and/or the Service IGs to 
help expedited the procedures for victims whose retaliation claims have been 
substantiated?  How does the BCMR coordinate cases with the DOD and Service 
IGs? 

e. Have the Services’ BCMRs established a separate procedure for sexual assault 
victims challenging their discharge as required by FY14 NDAA section 547?                  
If so, please describe that confidential process. 

f. What steps are BCMRs taking to give due consideration to the psychological and 
physical aspects of an individual’s experience in connection with the sex-related 
offense and determining what bearing such experience may have had on the 
circumstances surrounding the individual’s discharge or separation from the 
Armed Forces as required by FY15 NDAA 547? 
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Data Call 
 

81. For fiscal years 2012-2014, please provide the number of: sexual assault (SA) victims 
who filed an unrestricted report, followed by a retaliation claim, indicate the number of 
investigations each organization, the final disposition of the investigation.   
 
SA/Retaliation Claims Investigated FY12 FY13 FY14 

a. SA Victims who filed an unrestricted report    
b. SA Victims who filed an unrestricted report and 

subsequently complained of retaliation 
   

c. Investigated by Command    
d. Investigated by MCIO    
e. Investigated by Service IG    
f. Investigated by DOD IG    
g. Other type of Investigations    
h. Investigations incomplete    
i. Investigations unsubstantiated    
j. Investigations substantiated    
 

82. For fiscal years 2012-2014, based on the number of substantiated retaliation cases 
(answer to RFI # 81j ), please provide the number of service members who received an 
adverse action relating to their retaliatory misconduct (i.e., Article 92, Article 93 
(Maltreatment), or Article 134 (Obstruction of Justice)) and further identify the type of 
action taken and in the table below. 
 

Actions Taken Against Retaliators / Offenders FY12 FY13 FY14 
a. Total number of substantiated cases with adverse 

action taken against offender 
   

b. Offender received adverse administrative action, 
but retained in the Service 

   

c. Offender received adverse administrative action 
and administratively separated from the Service 

   

d. Offender received nonjudicial punishment, but 
retained in the Service 

   

e. Offender received nonjudicial punishment and 
administratively separated from the Service 

   

f. Offender court-martialed, but retained in the 
Service 

   

g. Offender court-martialed and received a punitive 
discharge (BCD, DD, Dismissal) 

   

h. Offender court-martialed (no kick) and 
subsequently administratively separated  
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83. For fiscal years 2012-2014, please provide the total number of sexual assault victims who 
filed an unrestricted report and were subsequently involuntarily discharged (medically, 
administratively or punitively discharged) from the service in FY12, FY13, and FY14.  
Please further break down that total number in 83b to indicate the number who received 
each type of discharge and the number who received each characterization of service 
each year for rows 83c-k in the table below.  

 
SA Victims (Involuntarily) Separated FY12 FY13 FY14 

a. SA Victims who filed an unrestricted report    
b. Total number of SA Victims who reported & 

subsequently involuntarily separated 
   

c. Medical separation    
d. Administrative separation    
e. Honorable discharge    
f. General, under honorable conditions discharge    
g. Other than honorable discharge    
h. Punitive discharge (court-martial)    
i. Bad conduct discharge    
j. Dishonorable discharge    
k. Dismissal    
 

84. (Service IGs) Please provide the following numbers for each FY12, FY13, FY14:   
 

Total Number of Sexual 
Assault 

Sexual 
Harassment 

Fraud, Waste & 
Abuse 

Other 
Crimes 

Reprisal Complaints 
Received by Service IG 

    

Investigations Opened     
Investigations Closed     
Substantiated Cases     

 
85. Provide dates for any upcoming conferences, summits, or training events (such as SAPR, 

MCIO, SVC, or SARC training) that focus on retaliation.  Please notify the JPP Director 
if a staff member would be permitted to observe any of those events.  

 
 
Request for production of documents: 
 

86. Please provide the information you gathered in response to the data call issued by the 
Under Secretary of Defense on March 12, 2015, to include the spreadsheets reflecting the 
Alleged Retaliation Case Synopses for FY14-15, and the Case Management Group 
(CMG) Retaliation Allegations Snapshot from March 2015. 
 

87. Please provide all materials that were provided to Human Rights Watch in 2014-2015 as 
part of their investigation into retaliation and military sexual assault. 
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88. Please review the tables on the following pages and provide a copy of or link to any other 
Service regulation(s) or policies that:   

 
a. prohibits retaliation against any victim or other Service member who reports a 

criminal offense with a punitive provision under Art. 92, UCMJ (FY14 NDAA 
section 1709);  

b. sets out the complaint, investigation, and appeals process for incidents of 
retaliation;  

c. describes the remedies available to Service members;  
d. describes disciplinary action for substantiated cases; 
e. addresses particular considerations in personnel actions for sexual assault victims 

to ensure they are not retaliated against (e.g., medical regulations pertaining to 
disability reviews for personality disorder diagnosis, promotion considerations, 
separations, etc.). 



REGULATORY PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO RETALIATION IN THE MILITARY 
 

Army Air Force Navy/MC DOD 

 

 1    Prepared by JPP Staff (Mar. 27, 2015) 
 

Retaliation Regulations 
Punitive 
Regulations 
Prohibiting 
Retaliation 
 
 
 

AD 2014-20 “Prohibition of 
Retaliation Against Soldiers for 
Reporting a Criminal Offense” (19 
Jun 2014) 
 
(2) No Soldier may retaliate against a 
victim, an alleged victim or another 
member of the Armed Forces based 
on that individual’s report of a 
criminal offense.  
 
(3) This directive implements FY14 
NDAA section 1709 effective 
immediately.  The provisions of this 
directive are punitive, and violations 
may be punished under Article 92, 
UCMJ.  
 

AFI 36-2909_AFGM2014-01 “Air 
Force Guidance Memorandum to 
AFI 36-2909, “Professional and 
Unprofessional Relationships” (19 
Jun 2014) 
 
Military members, including Reserve 
members on active duty or inactive 
duty for training and ANG members 
in Federal service, who violate the 
specific prohibitions contained in 
paragraph 11 of this instruction can 
be prosecuted under either Article 
92 or Article 134 of the Uniform 
code of Military Justice (UCMJ), or 
both, as well as any other applicable 
Article of the UCMJ, as appropriate. 
 
11. Prohibition on Retaliation. 
Military members shall not retaliate 
against an alleged victim or other 
military member who reports a 
criminal offense.  
 

ALNAV 030/14 Retaliation Against 
Members of the Armed Forces 
Reporting a Criminal Offense (Apr 
2014) 
 
RMKS/1. Retaliation against alleged 
victims or other members of the 
Armed Forces who report a criminal 
offense is prohibited. This 
prohibition constitutes a lawful 
general order, is punitive, and is 
applicable to all Department of the 
Navy (DON) personnel without 
further implementation. A 
violation by a person subject to the 
Uniform Code of Military Justice 
(UCMJ) (Chapter 47 of Title 10, 
United States Code) is punishable as 
a violation of Article 92 of the UCMJ.  
 
A violation by civilian personnel may 
be punishable under regulations 
governing disciplinary actions. 
 
SECNAVINST 5370.7D Military 
Whistleblower Protection (4 Dec 
2014) 4.d 
 

FY14 NDAA 1709 – Prohibition of 
Retaliation Against Members of the 
Armed Forces for Reporting A 
Criminal Offense. (Dec 26, 2013) 
 
(a)(1) REGULATIONS REQUIRED.—
The SecDef shall prescribe 
regulations, or require the 
Secretaries of the military 
departments to prescribe 
regulations, that prohibit 
retaliation against an alleged victim 
or other member of the 
Armed Forces who reports a criminal 
offense. The regulations 
shall prescribe that a violation of the 
regulations is an offense 
punishable under article 92 of the 
Uniform Code of Military Justice).  
 
(2) DEADLINE.—The regulations 
required by this subsection shall be 
prescribed not later than 120 days 
after the date of the enactment of 
this Act. 
 
10 U.S.C. 1034 – Protected 
communications; prohibition of 
retaliatory personnel actions 
 
 
 

http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/ad2014_20.pdf
http://static.e-publishing.af.mil/production/1/af_ja/publication/afi36-2909/afi36-2909.pdf
http://www.navy.mil/navydata/people/secnav/Mabus/Message/030_14_RETALIATION_AGALNAVAINST_MEMBERS_OF_THE_ARMED_FORCES_REPORTING_A_CRIMINAL_OFFENSE_04_25_2014.pdf
http://doni.daps.dla.mil/Directives/05000%20General%20Management%20Security%20and%20Safety%20Services/05-300%20Manpower%20Personnel%20Support/5370.7D.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/plaws/publ66/PLAW-113publ66.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/plaws/publ66/PLAW-113publ66.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/plaws/publ66/PLAW-113publ66.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/plaws/publ66/PLAW-113publ66.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2010-title10/pdf/USCODE-2010-title10-subtitleA-partII-chap53-sec1034.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2010-title10/pdf/USCODE-2010-title10-subtitleA-partII-chap53-sec1034.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2010-title10/pdf/USCODE-2010-title10-subtitleA-partII-chap53-sec1034.pdf
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Implementation 
Guidance 

(AD 2014-20 (7)) 
 
Commanders should consult with 
their servicing legal advisor and/or 
IG for guidance on implementation 
of this directive at the command 
level.  
 

(AFI 36-2909_AFGM2014-01 ) 
 
14. Actions in Response to 
Retaliation. A commander or 
supervisor must take appropriate 
action if it is reasonable to believe 
retaliation has occurred. At a 
minimum, the member or members 
suspected of engaging in retaliation 
will be ordered to cease from 
engaging in any further retaliation. 
As soon as practicable, the alleged 
victim, or other military member 
who is believed to have been 
retaliated against will be informed 
that command is aware of the 
suspected act or acts of retaliation, 
and that the alleged offenders have 
been ordered to cease from 
engaging in any further retaliation. 
The individual retaliated against will 
be advised to report any further acts 
of retaliation.  
 
17. Questions Regarding 
Retaliation. Military members who 
have questions as to the application 
or interpretation of the policy should 
consult their commander. 
Commanders are highly encouraged 
to consult their staff judge advocates 
or servicing legal offices for 
assistance in interpretation.  
 

(ALNAV 030/14 (3)) 
 
The DON is revising all appropriate 
instructions to incorporate these 
changes. In the interim, consult and 
coordinate with Command IGs on 
matters involving allegations of 
suspected retaliation. Additionally, 
recommend you consult with your 
Staff Judge Advocate, Office of 
General Counsel Attorney, Region 
Legal Service Office, or Legal 
Services Support Section, as 
appropriate, with any questions 
regarding this message.  
 
 
 

SecDef Memorandum for 
Secretaries of the Military 
Departments re: Sexual Assault 
Prevention and Response (Dec 3, 
2014) 
 
Engage Command to Prevent 
Retaliation: the Chiefs of the 
Military Services and the NGB will 
develop new procedures for 
installation commanders who serve 
as the SAPR Case Management 
Group Chair.  These procedures will 
require installation commanders to 
regularly assess, and refer for 
appropriate corrective action, all 
reports from a victim, witness, or 
first responder of retaliation, 
ostracism, maltreatment, or reprisal 
in conjunction with a report of 
sexual assault.  These procedures 
will be provided to the USD(P&R) by 
January 30, 2015. 
 

http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/ad2014_20.pdf
http://static.e-publishing.af.mil/production/1/af_ja/publication/afi36-2909/afi36-2909.pdf
http://www.navy.mil/navydata/people/secnav/Mabus/Message/030_14_RETALIATION_AGALNAVAINST_MEMBERS_OF_THE_ARMED_FORCES_REPORTING_A_CRIMINAL_OFFENSE_04_25_2014.pdf
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
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Whistleblower 
Protection/IG 
Complaint 
Regulations 

AR 600-20 Ch 5-12 (11/6/2014) 
Military Whistleblower Protection 
Act 
  
Dept of the Army personnel are 
prohibited from taking acts of 
reprisal against any Soldier for filing 
a complaint of unlawful 
discrimination or sexual harassment 
(see DoDD 7050.06)(5-12) 
 
The Chain of command will ensure 
complainants are protected from 
reprisal or retaliation for filing EO 
complaints. Should Soldiers be 
threatened with such an act, or 
should an act of reprisal occur, they 
must report these circumstances to 
the DoD IG. (5-12e) 
 
AR 20-1, Inspector General 
Activities and Procedures (3 Jul 
2012) 
 
AR 15-6, Procedure for Investigating 
Officers and Boards of Officers (30 
Sep 1996) 

AFI90-301 Inspector General 
Complaints Resolution (23 Aug 
2011, Inc Ch 1, 6 Jun 2012) 
 
6.3.1. Members of the armed forces 
shall be free from reprisal for making 
or preparing to make a protected 
communication (PC).  
6.3.1.1. No person may take (or 
threaten to take) an unfavorable 
personnel action; or withhold (or 
threaten to withhold) a favorable 
personnel action as reprisal against a 
member of the armed forces for 
making or preparing to make a 
protected communication.  
6.3.1.2. Military members who 
violate this prohibition are subject to 
prosecution and/or disciplinary and 
administrative action under Article 
92 of the UCMJ.  
  
JAG Guide to IG Investigations (14 
Apr 2010) 
 
IG Guide for Investigating Officers 
(Feb 2012) 
 
Commander-Directed Investigation 
(CDI) Guide (26 Apr 2010) 
 
IG Reference Guide for 
Commanders/Agency Chiefs 
  
 
 

SECNAVINST 5370.7D Military 
Whistleblower Protection (4 Dec 
2014) 
 
5d. No person shall restrict or 
attempt to restrict service members 
from making lawful communications 
to a member of Congress or an IG. 
 
5e. Service members and DON 
personnel shall not take or threaten 
to take an unfavorable personnel 
action, or withhold or threaten to 
withhold a favorable personnel 
action, in reprisal against any service 
member for making or preparing to 
make, or who is perceived as making 
or preparing to make, a protected 
communication. 
 
5f. Service members and DON 
personnel shall not retaliate 
against a service member because 
the member reported a criminal 
offense. 
 
Marine Corps Inspector General 
Program Investigations Guide Part 2 
(Special Topic IG 
Inquiries/Investigations) (August 
2009) 
Marine Corps Inspector General 
Program Assistance Guide (August 
2009) 
MCO 5430.1 Marine Corps Inspector 
General Program (13 Nov 2006) 

DoDD 7050.06 - Military 
Whistleblower Protection (Jul 23, 
2007) 
 
4.1. Members of the Armed Forces 
shall be free to make a protected 
communication. 
4.2. No person shall restrict a 
member of the Armed Forces from 
making lawful communications to a 
Member of Congress or an IG. 
4.3. Members of the Armed Forces 
shall be free from reprisal for making 
or preparing to make a protected 
communication. 
4.4. No person may take or threaten 
to take an unfavorable personnel 
action, or withhold or threaten to 
withhold a favorable personnel 
action, in reprisal against any 
member of the Armed Forces for 
making or preparing to make a 
protected communication. 
4.5. The Secretaries of the Military 
Departments shall issue general 
regulations making punishable 
under Article 92, Uniform Code of 
Military Justice (UCMJ), “Failure to 
Obey Order or Regulation,” any 
violation of the prohibitions of 
paragraphs 4.2. and 4.4. by persons 
subject to the UCMJ. 
 
 

http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/r600_20.pdf
http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/r20_1.pdf
http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/r20_1.pdf
http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/r20_1.pdf
http://www.armyg1.army.mil/EO/docs/ar15_6.pdf
http://www.armyg1.army.mil/EO/docs/ar15_6.pdf
http://www.armyg1.army.mil/EO/docs/ar15_6.pdf
http://www.af.mil/Portals/1/documents/ig/afi-90-301.pdf
http://www.af.mil/Portals/1/documents/ig/jag-guide-ig-investigations.pdf
http://www.af.mil/Portals/1/documents/ig/jag-guide-ig-investigations.pdf
http://www.af.mil/Portals/1/documents/ig/investigating-officers-guide-2012.pdf
http://www.af.mil/Portals/1/documents/ig/investigating-officers-guide-2012.pdf
http://www.af.mil/Portals/1/documents/ig/cdi-guide.pdf
http://www.af.mil/Portals/1/documents/ig/cdi-guide.pdf
http://www.af.mil/Portals/1/documents/ig/ig-reference-guide-for-commanders.pdf
http://www.af.mil/Portals/1/documents/ig/ig-reference-guide-for-commanders.pdf
http://doni.daps.dla.mil/Directives/05000%20General%20Management%20Security%20and%20Safety%20Services/05-300%20Manpower%20Personnel%20Support/5370.7D.pdf
http://www.hqmc.marines.mil/igmc/Resources/AIReferences.aspx
http://www.hqmc.marines.mil/igmc/Resources/AIReferences.aspx
http://www.hqmc.marines.mil/Portals/146/Docs/info%20and%20Downloads/Assistance%20Guide%202009.pdf
http://www.hqmc.marines.mil/Portals/146/Docs/info%20and%20Downloads/Assistance%20Guide%202009.pdf
http://www.marines.mil/Portals/59/Publications/MCO%205430.1.pdf
http://www.marines.mil/Portals/59/Publications/MCO%205430.1.pdf
http://www.dtic.mil/whs/directives/corres/pdf/705006p.pdf
http://www.dtic.mil/whs/directives/corres/pdf/705006p.pdf
http://www.dtic.mil/whs/directives/corres/pdf/705006p.pdf
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Oversight (AD 2014-20 (8)) 
 
The Deputy Chief of Staff, G-1 is the 
proponent for this policy and will 
incorporate the provisions of this 
directive into the next revision of 
Army Regulation 600-20 as soon as 
practicable. This directive is 
rescinded upon publication of the 
revised regulation.  

(AFI 36-2909_AFGM2014-01 (13)) 
 
Commanders and supervisors at all 
levels have the authority and 
responsibility to ensure subordinates 
do not retaliate against an alleged 
victim or other military member who 
reports a criminal offense. 
Commanders and supervisors have a 
duty to prevent retaliation and may 
be held accountable for failing to act 
in appropriate cases.  
 

SECNAVINST 5370.7D 
Enclosure 3 
 
1. The Naval IG and the IGMC have 
overall responsibility for 
assisting SECNAV in ensuring full 
implementation of 10 U.S.C. 1034 
and the part of FY14 NDAA 1709  
that prohibits retaliation in the form 
of an unfavorable personnel action 
for reporting, or preparing to report, 
a criminal offense.  
 
(ALNAV 030/14(4))4. Point of 
contact at Naval Inspector General is 
Mr. Richard Gambino, 
Branch Head, Whistleblower 
Reprisal, at (202) 433-2097, or via e-
mail at richard.gambino@navy.mil.   
 

SecDef Memorandum for 
Secretaries of the Military 
Departments re: Sexual Assault 
Prevention and Response (Dec 3, 
2014) 
 
Engage Command to Prevent 
Retaliation: the Chiefs of the 
Military Services and the NGB will 
develop new procedures for 
installation commanders who serve 
as the SAPR Case Management 
Group Chair.  These procedures will 
require installation commanders to 
regularly assess, and refer for 
appropriate corrective action, all 
reports from a victim, witness, or 
first responder of retaliation, 
ostracism, maltreatment, or reprisal 
in conjunction with a report of 
sexual assault.  These procedures 
will be provided to the USD(P&R) by 
January 30, 2015. 
 

http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/ad2014_20.pdf
http://static.e-publishing.af.mil/production/1/af_ja/publication/afi36-2909/afi36-2909.pdf
http://doni.daps.dla.mil/Directives/05000%20General%20Management%20Security%20and%20Safety%20Services/05-300%20Manpower%20Personnel%20Support/5370.7D.pdf
mailto:richard.gambino@navy.mil
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
http://sapr.mil/public/docs/reports/FY14_POTUS/FY14_DoD_Report_to_POTUS_SecDef_Initiatives.pdf
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Retaliation 
Defined 

(AD 2014-20 (4)(a)(1))(19 Jun 2014) 
 
Taking or threatening to take an adverse 
or unfavorable personnel action, or 
withholding or threatening to withhold a 
favorable personnel action, with respect 
to a victim or other member of the 
Armed Forces because the individual 
reported a criminal offense or was 
believed to have reported a criminal 
offense; or  
 
(AD 2014-20(4)(a)(2)) ostracism, which is 
defined as excluding from social 
acceptance, privilege or friendship a 
victim or other member of the Armed 
Forces because: (a) the individual 
reported a criminal offense; (b) the 
individual was believed to have reported 
a criminal offense; or (c) the ostracism 
was motivated by the intent to 
discourage reporting of a criminal 
offense or otherwise to discourage the 
due administration of justice; or 
 
(AD 2014-20(4)(a)(3)) acts of cruelty, 
oppression or maltreatment (as these 
terms are described in paragraph 17c(2) 
of MCM Part IV), committed against a 
victim, an alleged victim or another 
member of the Armed Forces by peers 
or other persons, because the individual 
reported a criminal offense or was 
believed to have reported a criminal 
offense.  
 
(see AR 600-20, 5-12d – narrower 
definition of retaliation) 
 

(AFI 36-2909_AFGM2014-01)(19 Jun 
2014) 
 
11.1. Retaliation is taking or threatening 
to take an adverse personnel action, or 
withholding or threatening to withhold a 
favorable personnel action, with respect 
to a military member because the 
member reported a criminal offense.  
 
11.2. Ostracism, which is a form of 
retaliation under this instruction, is the 
exclusion, from social acceptance, 
privilege or friendship with the intent to 
discourage reporting of a criminal 
offense or otherwise discourage the due 
administration of justice.  
 
11.3. Maltreatment, which is a form of 
retaliation under this instruction, is 
treatment by peers or by other persons, 
that, when viewed objectively under all 
the circumstances, is abusive or 
otherwise unnecessary for any lawful 
purpose, that is done with the intent to 
discourage reporting of a criminal 
offense or otherwise discourage the due 
administration of justice, and that results 
in physical or mental harm or suffering, 
or reasonably could have caused, 
physical or mental harm or suffering. 
Maltreatment under this instruction is 
prohibited by the FY14 NDAA, Section 
1709(b), and does not require a senior-
subordinate relationship as is required 
for maltreatment under Article 93, 
UCMJ. 
 
(See narrower def.: 2.1.1. Reprisal.  
IG Guide for Investigating Officers) 

 SECNAVINST 5370.7D (4 Dec 2014) 
Encl 1 
 
15. a. Per reference FY14 NDAA 1709, 
retaliation against a service member is 
one of the following actions when taken 
because that member reported, either 
formally or informally, a criminal 
offense: 
 
(1) Taking or threatening to take an 
unfavorable or adverse personnel 
action, or withholding or threatening to 
withhold a favorable personnel action; 
(2) Ostracism, which is the exclusion 
from social acceptance, privilege, or 
friendship with intent to discourage 
reporting of a criminal offense or 
otherwise discourage the due 
administration of justice; or 
 
(3) Maltreatment, which is treatment by 
peers or by other persons, that, when 
viewed objectively under all the 
circumstances, is abusive or otherwise 
unwarranted, unjustified, and 
unnecessary for any lawful purpose, that 
is done with intent to discourage 
reporting of a criminal offense or 
otherwise discourage the due 
administration of justice, and that results 
in physical or mental harm or suffering, 
or reasonably could have caused, 
physical or mental harm or suffering. 
Maltreatment under this instruction 
does not require a senior-subordinate 
relationship as is required for 
maltreatment under Article 93, UCMJ.. 
 
See also ALNAV 030/14 

FY14 NDAA 1709(b) 
 
(1) RETALIATION —For purposes of 
the regulations required by the FY14 
NDAA 1709(b) 
 
 (a), the Secretary of Defense shall 
define retaliation to include, at a 
minimum— 
 
(A) taking or threatening to take an 
adverse personnel action, or 
withholding or threatening to 
withhold a favorable 
personnel action, with respect to a 
member of the Armed Forces 
because the member reported a 
criminal offense; and 
 
(B) ostracism and such of acts of 
maltreatment, as designated by the 
Secretary of Defense, committed by 
peers of a member of the Armed 
Forces or by other persons 
because the member reported a 
criminal offense. 
 

http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/ad2014_20.pdf
http://static.e-publishing.af.mil/production/1/af_ja/publication/afi36-2909/afi36-2909.pdf
http://www.ucmj.us/sub-chapter-10-punitive-articles/893-article-93-cruelty-and-maltreatment
http://www.ucmj.us/sub-chapter-10-punitive-articles/893-article-93-cruelty-and-maltreatment
http://doni.daps.dla.mil/Directives/05000%20General%20Management%20Security%20and%20Safety%20Services/05-300%20Manpower%20Personnel%20Support/5370.7D.pdf
http://www.ucmj.us/sub-chapter-10-punitive-articles/893-article-93-cruelty-and-maltreatment
http://www.navy.mil/navydata/people/secnav/Mabus/Message/030_14_RETALIATION_AGALNAVAINST_MEMBERS_OF_THE_ARMED_FORCES_REPORTING_A_CRIMINAL_OFFENSE_04_25_2014.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/plaws/publ66/PLAW-113publ66.pdf
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Personnel 
Action Defined 

(AD 2014-20 (4)(b)) 
 
Any action taken against a member 
of the Armed Forces that affects, or 
has the potential to affect, that 
member’s current position or career.  
Such actions include a promotion; a 
disciplinary or other corrective 
action; a transfer or reassignment; a 
performance evaluation; a decision 
on pay, benefits, awards or training; 
referral for mental health 
evaluations; and any other 
significant change in duties or 
responsibilities inconsistent with the 
member’s grade.  
 

(AFI 36-2909_AFGM2014-01) 
 
11.4. Personnel Action. Any action 
taken on a military member that 
affects or has the potential to affect 
that military member’s current 
position or career. Such actions 
include a promotion; a disciplinary 
or other corrective action; a transfer 
or reassignment; a performance 
evaluation; a decision on pay, 
benefits, awards or training; and any 
other significant change in duties or 
responsibilities inconsistent with the 
military member’s grade.  
 

(SECNAVINST 5370.7D) 
 
11. Personnel Action: Per DoDD 
7050.06, any action taken with 
respect to a service member that 
affects, or has the potential 
to affect, that member's current 
position or career. Such actions 
include a promotion; a disciplinary 
or other corrective action; a transfer 
or reassignment; a performance 
evaluation; a decision on pay, 
benefits, awards, or training; referral 
for mental health evaluations under 
DoDD 7050.06; and any other 
significant change in duties or 
responsibilities inconsistent with the 
service member's grade. 
 
 

FY14 NDAA 1709(b) 
 
(2) PERSONNEL ACTIONS.—For 
purposes of retaliation by adverse 
personnel action, the Secretary of 
Defense shall define the personnel 
actions to be covered by the 
regulations. 

  

http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/ad2014_20.pdf
http://static.e-publishing.af.mil/production/1/af_ja/publication/afi36-2909/afi36-2909.pdf
http://doni.daps.dla.mil/Directives/05000%20General%20Management%20Security%20and%20Safety%20Services/05-300%20Manpower%20Personnel%20Support/5370.7D.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/plaws/publ66/PLAW-113publ66.pdf
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Investigations of Retaliation Complaints 
Investigation Process 
for  Ostracism and/or 
Maltreatment (Social 
Retaliation) 

(AD 2014-20 (6)) 
 
Allegations of retaliation 
described in paragraphs 4a(2) 
(ostracism) and 4a(3) (cruelty, 
maltreatment) will be referred to, 
and investigated by, the victim ‘s 
chain of command or supervision, 
or by any other appropriate 
investigative agency, organization 
or entity.  
 

(AFI 36-2909_AFGM2014-01(14)) 
 
A commander or supervisor must 
take appropriate action if it is 
reasonable to believe retaliation 
has occurred. At a minimum, the 
member or members suspected of 
engaging in retaliation will be 
ordered to cease from engaging in 
any further retaliation. As soon as 
practicable, the alleged victim, or 
other military member who is 
believed to have been retaliated 
against will be informed that 
command is aware of the 
suspected act or acts of retaliation, 
and that the alleged offenders 
have been ordered to cease from 
engaging in any further retaliation. 
The individual retaliated against 
will be advised to report any 
further acts of retaliation.  
 

SECNAVINST 5370.7D, Encl 3 
 
(m) Navy IG and IGMC will refer 
allegations of ostracism or 
maltreatment to the appropriate 
command for action except in 
those circumstances where IG 
wishes to handle, such as those 
cases where a personnel action as 
well as ostracism and 
maltreatment are alleged or where 
subject is flag officer or SES. 
 

Not Addressed by DoD 

http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/ad2014_20.pdf
http://static.e-publishing.af.mil/production/1/af_ja/publication/afi36-2909/afi36-2909.pdf
http://doni.daps.dla.mil/Directives/05000%20General%20Management%20Security%20and%20Safety%20Services/05-300%20Manpower%20Personnel%20Support/5370.7D.pdf
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Investigation Process 
for Professional 
Retaliation 
 

(AD 2014-20 (5)) 
 
Allegations of retaliation 
described in paragraph 4a(1) 
(personnel actions) will be 
referred to, and investigated by, 
the appropriate IG in accordance 
with DoDD 7050.06 and AR 20-1.  
 

(AFI 36-2909_AFGM2014-01) 
 
16. Relationship of Retaliation to 
Inspector General Complaints 
Resolution Program. Cases 
involving retaliation or allegations 
of retaliation, should be evaluated 
to determine if they involve 1) 
reprisal for making protected 
communications, 2) restriction 
from making lawful 
communications, or 3) improper 
referral for a mental health 
evaluation, in violation of AFI 90-
301, Inspector General Complaints 
Resolution, para. 1.13.6. If so, refer 
the matter to the Inspector 
General Complaints Resolution 
Program.  
 

SECNAVINST 5370.7D, Encl 3 
 
Naval IG and IGMC must: (b)Notify 
DoD IG within 10 days of receiving 
a complaint of reprisal. Conduct 
preliminary inquiry to determine if 
sufficient evidence to conduct full 
investigation. Report decision to 
DoD IG within 30 days of receiving 
complaint. May task to Echelon II 
or Command IG. (c)If sufficient 
evidence, open full investigation, 
or if requested by DoD IG.  Ensure 
only investigators with specialized 
training or experience conduct 
reprisal investigations. (d)Ensure 
complainant advised of their rights 
and offer to assist in preparing 
complaints or forwarding to DoD 
IG. (c)Complaint must be made 
within 1 yr. of complainant 
awareness of personnel action, but 
can be waived for compelling case. 
(f)Ensure investigator is outside 
immediate chain of command or at 
least one organization higher in 
the  chain that either party. (g) 
Ensure preliminary report 
reviewed by attorney. (h) Ensure 
report contains recommendations 
for appropriate remedy for the 
complainant. Provide DoD IG 
report of investigation w/in 150 
days of receipt of complaint. 
(m) refer allegations of ostracism 
or maltreatment to the 
appropriate command for action 
except in those circumstances 
where IG wishes to handle. 

DoDD 7050.06 – 
 
DoD IG 
5.1.1. Determine whether 
sufficient evidence to warrant an 
investigation of complaint. 
5.1.2. Receive notification from 
Service Igs of all reprisal 
complaints and notify Service IG if 
DoD IG to retain case. 
5.1.3 Review and approve Service 
IG determinations that no 
investigation warranted. 
5.1.4. initiate or request Service IG 
to initiate investigations. Ensure 
that Service IG conducting 
investigation is outside chain of 
command of either party. 
5.1.5. Review and approve results 
of investigations conducted by 
Service Igs.  Initiate a follow-up 
investigat. To correct any 
inadequacies. 
5.1.6. Issue a report of 
investigation w/in 180 days of 
receipt of complaint by DoD IG. 
Report MAY include 
recommendation(s) as to 
disposition of the complaint. Notify 
DUSD(PI) 
 
 
4.7. No investigation is required if 
complaint filed more than 60 days 
from date member learned of 
personnel action, but IG may still 
investigate if compelling case. 

http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/ad2014_20.pdf
http://static.e-publishing.af.mil/production/1/af_ja/publication/afi36-2909/afi36-2909.pdf
http://doni.daps.dla.mil/Directives/05000%20General%20Management%20Security%20and%20Safety%20Services/05-300%20Manpower%20Personnel%20Support/5370.7D.pdf
http://www.dtic.mil/whs/directives/corres/pdf/705006p.pdf
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Retaliation – Corrective Actions and Appeals 
Subject 
Disciplinary , 
Criminal  
Actions or 
Remedies 
(Prof/Social) 

AD 2014-20 
 
 
The provisions of this directive are 
punitive, and violations may be 
punished under Article 92, UCMJ. 

AFI 36-2909_AFGM2014-01  
 
Military members, including Reserve 
members on active duty or inactive 
duty for training and ANG members 
in Federal service, who violate the 
specific prohibitions contained in 
paragraph 11 of this instruction can 
be prosecuted under either Article 
92 or Article 134 of the UCMJ, or 
both, as well as any other applicable 
Article of the UCMJ, as appropriate. 
 
(AFI 36-2909_AFGM2014-01(14)) 
 
At a minimum, the member or 
members suspected of engaging in 
retaliation will be ordered to cease 
from engaging in any further 
retaliation. 
 

ALNAV 030/14 
 
 
A violation by a person subject to 
the UCMJ (Chapter 47 of Title 10, 
United States Code) is punishable as 
a violation of Article 92 of the UCMJ.  
 
A violation by civilian personnel may 
be punishable under regulations 
governing disciplinary actions. 
 

FY14 NDAA 1709 
 
(a)The regulations shall prescribe 
that a violation of the regulations is 
an offense punishable under article 
92 of the UCMJ. 
 
(c) REPORT ON SEPARATE PUNITIVE 
ARTICLE.—Not later than 
180 days after the date of the 
enactment of this Act, the SecDef 
shall submit to the SASC and HASC a 
report setting forth the 
recommendations of the SecDef 
regarding whether the UCMJ should 
be amended to add a new punitive 
article to subchapter X of such 
chapter to prohibit retaliation 
against an alleged victim or other 
member of the Armed Forces 
who reports a criminal offense. 

 

http://www.apd.army.mil/pdffiles/ad2014_20.pdf
http://static.e-publishing.af.mil/production/1/af_ja/publication/afi36-2909/afi36-2909.pdf
http://www.navy.mil/navydata/people/secnav/Mabus/Message/030_14_RETALIATION_AGALNAVAINST_MEMBERS_OF_THE_ARMED_FORCES_REPORTING_A_CRIMINAL_OFFENSE_04_25_2014.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/plaws/publ66/PLAW-113publ66.pdf

